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IN THE MATTER OF

SILO, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALGED VIOLATION OF THE

ENERGY POUCY AND CONSERVATION ACT & THE FEDERA TRADE
COMMISSION S APPUANCE LABEUNG RULE

Docket C- 263. Complaint, July 20, 1989-DecisWn, July 20, 1989

This consent order requires, among other things, the Philadelphia, Pa. based
corpration, that operates stores that sell major appliances , to pay $45 000 in
civil penalties.

Appearances

For the Commission: Kathry Nielsen.

For the respondent: Erin Scher

York City.
Weil, Gotshal Manges New

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Energy Policy and Conservation
Act ("EPCA"), as amended, and by virtue of the authority vested in it
by the aforementioned Act , the Federal Trade Commission, having
reason to believe that SILO , Inc. , a corporation , hereinafter sometimes
referred to as respondent, has violated and is violating said Act, and
the Commission s Rule for Using Energy Costs and Consumption

Information Used in Labeling and Advertising for Consumer Appli-

ances Under the Energy Policy and Conservation Act ("Appliance
Labeling Rule ), and it appearing to the Commission that a

proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest
hereby issues this complaint, stating its charges in that respect as
follows:

PARGRAH 1. SILO , Inc. ("SILO" ) is a Pennsylvania corporation
with its office and principal place of business located at 6900
Lindbergh Boulevard, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

PAR. 2. Respondent advertises , offers for sale , and sells household
appliances and electronic equipment in its retail stores located

throughout the United States.
PAR. 3. The Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U. C. 6291 et
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seq. , authorizes the Federal Trade Commission to prescribe rules
requiring manufacturers to disclose certain energy usage information
on labels placed on the exterior surface of covered products, including
clothes washers, dishwashers , freezers, refrigerators, and refrgera-
tor-freezers. EPCA also prohibits retailers from removing the labels
from the appliances or rendering the labels ilegible. 42 U.
6302(a)(2).
PAR. 4. Pursuant to 42 U. C. 6294 , the Commission promulgated

the Appliance Labeling Rule, 16 CFR 305 , which requires manufac-
turers to affix an EnergyGuide label to the exterior surface of certain
covered products , including clothes washers , dishwashers, freezers
refrgerators , and refrigerator-freezers. Section 305. 11(a)(5) of the
Appliance Labeling Rule, 16 CFR 305(1l)(a)(5), specifies the contents
of the EnergyGuide label , including a requirement that the following
statement appear at the bottom of the label: " IMPORTANT. REMOV-
AL OF THIS LAEL BEFORE CONSUMER PURCHASE IS A
VIOLATION OF FEDERAL LAW (42 U. C. 6302)." The Appliance

Labeling Rule prohibits retailers from removing the EnergyGuide
labels from the exterior surface of the appliances or rendering the

labels ilegible. 16 CFR 305.4(a)(2).
PAR. 5. Silo is a "retailer" or "covered products" as those terms are

defined in 16 CFR 305.2(d) and (0) and 42 U. C. 6291(a)(13) and

(a)(2).
PAR. 6. In numerous instances, SILO has removed the EnergyGuide

labels from covered products, including refrigerators, refrigerator-
freezers, freezers, dishwashers , and clothes washers or has rendered
them ilegible , thereby violating 16 CFR 305.4(a)(2) and 42 U.
6302(a)(2).

PAR. 7. At the times respondent engaged in the acts or practices
described in paragraph six above , it did so "knowingly" as that term
is used in 16 CFR 305.4(f) and 42 U. C. 6303(b). Respondent

therefore is liable for civil penalties pursuant to 16 CFR 305.4(a)(2)
and 42 U. C. 6303(a).

PAR. 8. 42 U. C. 6303(a) authorizes the Commission to assess a
civil penalty of not more than $100. 00 for each violation. For purposes
of assessing the civil penalty, each violation of 42 U. C. 6303(a)

constitutes a separate violation with respect to each covered product.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
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certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereaftr with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Seattle Regional Offce
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and

which, if issued by the Commission , would charge respondent with
violation of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act and the Federal
Trade Commission s Appliance Labeling Rule; and

The respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order
an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of
said agrement is for settement purposes only and does not constitute
an admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged
in such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereaftr considered the matter and

having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Act and Rule, and that complaint should issue
stating its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the
executed consent agreement, the Commission hereby issues its
complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent SILO, Inc. is a Pennsylvania corporation, with its
offces and principal place of business located at 6900 Lindbergh
Boulevard, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent.

ORDER

It is ordered That respondent shall , within 30 days from the date of
issuance of this order, pay, pursuant to 42 U. C. 6303 , a civil penalty
in the amount of $45 000.00. Respondent shall make this payment by
cashier s or certified check payable to the Treasurer of the United
States and deliver it to Regional Director, Federal Trade Commission
915 Second Avenue , Room 2806, Seatte, Washington 98174 for
appropriate disposition. In the event of default, respondent shall be
liable for interest calculated in accordance with 28 U. C. 1961 , as
amended.

Commissioner Strenio dissenting.
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DISSENTING STATEMENT OF COMMISSIONER ANDREW J. STRENIO, JR.

I have voted against this consent agreement because it lacks an
injunction barring SILO from violating the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act. Such an injunction would increase deterrence

against future violations by SILO or others and thereby assist the
Commission in achieving compliance with this law.
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IN THE MATTER OF

NUTRITONE, INC. , ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC. , IN REGARD TO ALGED VIOLATION OF SECS.

5 AND 12 OF THE FEDERA TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3261,. Complaint, July 21" 1989-Deciio, July 24, 1989

This consent order prohibits , among other things, a Massachusetts corporation from
making any representations concerning the effcacy of electric muscle stimulation

EMS") treatment programs and products , unless respondents possess reliable
scientific evidence to substantiate the representations. Respondents are required
to retain, for at least five years, records supporting any future advertising and
also required to post a copy of the order on the premises.

Appearames

For the Commission: Sara V. Greenberg, William P. McDonough
and Phoebe Morse.

For the respondents: Alan J. Cushner Boston, Ma.

COMPLANT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Nutritone , Inc. , a corporation , also trading and doing business as Body
By Design, and Dinah H. Simonini and Donald L. Simonini , individual-
ly and as offcers of said corporation ("respondents ), have violated
Sections 5(a) and 12 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof
would be in the public interest, alleges that:

PARAGRAPH 1. (a) Respondent Nutritone, Inc. , is a Massachusetts
corporation. Its principal office or place of business is at 1172 Beacon
Street, Newton, Massachusetts.

(b) Dinah H. Simonini and Donald L. Simonini are offcers of the
corporate respondent. They formulate , direct and control the acts and
practices of the corporate respondent, including all the acts and
practices alleged in this complaint below. Their principal office or
place of business is the same as that of the corporation.

PAR. 2. Respondents have advertised, offered for sale, sold and

distributed to the public an electric muscle stimulation program.
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PAR. 3. Respondents have caused to be prepared and placed for

publication and have caused the dissemination of advertising and
promotional materials, including, but not limited to, the advertising

and promotional materials attached hereto as Exhibits A through D to
promote the sale of their electric muscle stimulation treatment
program.
PAR. 4. The acts or practices of respondents alleged in this

complaint have been in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of their business , respondents
have disseminated and caused the dissemination of advertisements
and promotional materials for electric muscle stimulation , by various
means in or affecting commerce and including inter alia placing
advertisements for broadcast by radio, in magazines and in newspa-
pers distributed through the mail  and across state lines, for the
purpose of inducing, and which were likely to induce, directly or

indirectly, the purchase of respondents ' electrical muscle stimulation
program.

PAR. 6. Typical statements in such advertisements and promotional
materials, disseminated as previously described, but not necessarily
inclusive thereof, are found in advertisements and promotional

materials attached hereto as Exhibits A through D. Specifically, these
advertisements and promotional materials contain the following
statements:

1. Exercise 20 muscle groups simultaneously and achieve up to 1000 muscle

contractions as in situps, pushups and leglifts.
2. Men develop the "V" shape.
3. Women tone stomachs, thighs and buttocks.
4. EMS can be the best workout of your life with significant strength gains.
5. Save time-in just 35 min. you can do the equivalent of 2 hours in the 

gy.

6. EMS is the new high technology way to tone or strengthen muscles for Men and
Women.

7. No agonizing exercise-no pain.

PAR. 7. Through the use inter alia of the statements referred to in
paragraph six and other statements contained in advertisements or

promotional materials not specifically set forth herein, respondents
have represented , and now represent, directly or by implication, that
their electric muscle stimulation treatments:

1. Cause muscle contractions of comparable intensity to those
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produced when normal healthy people do conventional physical
exercise such as situps, pushups and leglifts;

2. Change the girth of various parts of the body such as the
stomach, buttocks, and thighs;

3. Provide all the health benefits to normal healthy people 
rigorous physical exercise;

4. Provide greater health benefits and increases in strength for
normal healthy people in a specified period of time than a program of
rigorous physical exercise for the same time period;

5. Are the result of recent scientific and technological learning and
experimentation; and

PAR. 8. In truth and in fact, respondents ' electric muscle stimulation
treatments consisting of low-frequency, low-current muscle stimula-
tion:

1. Do not cause muscle contractions of comparable intensity to
those produced when normal healthy people do conventional physical
exercise such as situps, pushups and leglift;

2. Do not change the girth of various parts of the body such as the
stomach, buttocks, and thigh;

3. Do not provide all the health benefits to normal healthy people of
rigorous physical exercise;

4. Do not provide grater health benefits and increases in strength
for normal healthy people in a specific period of time than programs of
regular 

gy 

exercises for the same time period;
5. Are not the result of recent scientific and technological learning

and experimentation. Therefore, the representations set forth in

paragraph seven are false and misleading.
PAR. 9. Through the use inter alia of the statements referred to in

paragraph six , and other statements contained in advertisements and
promotional materials not specifically set forth herein, respondents
have represented and now represent, directly or by implication, that at
the time of making the representations set forth in paragraph seven
respondents possessed and relied upon a reasonable basis for these
representations.

PAR. 10. In truth and in fact, at the time of those representations
respondents did not possess and rely upon a reasonable basis for
making such representations. Therefore, the representation set forth
in paragraph nine was, and is, false and misleading.

PAR. 11. The acts and practices of respondents as alleged in this
complaint, and the placement in the hands of others of the means and
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instrumentalities by and through which others may have used said
acts and practices , constitute unfair and deceptive acts or practices in
or affecting commerce and the dissemination of false advertisements
in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act.
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DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Boston Regional Office
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and

which , if issued by the Commission , would charge respondents with
violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is
for settement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in sucb

complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereaftr considered the matter and

having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days , now in further conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent, Nutritone, Inc. , is a corporation, d/b/a/ Body By
Design, organized , existing and doing business under and by virtue of
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with its office and
principal place of business located at 65 Main Street, Watertown
Massachusetts.

2. Respondents Dinah H. Simonini and Donald L. Simonini are
officers of the corporation.

3. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.
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ORDER

It is ordered That respondents Nutritone, Inc. , a corporation, its

officers , and Dinah H. Simonini and Donald L. Simonini , individually
and as officers of the corporation, their successors and assigns, and
respondents, agents, representatives, and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, in

connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sellng or distribu-
tion of any electric muscle stimulation treatment program or product
in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the Federal
Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from represent-
ing, directly or by implication, contrary to fact , that any low-frequency
(1000 Hz and below) electric muscle stimulation treatment or product:

A. Can cause muscle contractions of similar intensity to those
produced by conventional exercise.

B. Will visibly change the girth of any part of the body without a
reduction in caloric intake or participation in a weight loss program.

C. Provides similar or superior health benefis to those produced by
rigorous conventional exercise for normal healthy people.

D. Provides, in the same or shortr time period, health benefits

similar or superior to those produced by conventional exercise.
E. Are a result of any new or recent scientific and technological

research and experimentation.

II.

It is further ordered That respondents Nutritone , inc. , a corpora-
tion, its offcers, and Dinah H. Simonini and Donald L. Simonini
individually and as officers of the corporation , their successors and
assigns, and respondents' agents, representatives, and employees
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other

device , in connection with the advertising, offering for sale , sale or
distribution of any diet, strength development, or fitness program or
product in or affecting commerce , as "commerce" is defined in the
Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from
making any representation , directly or by implication , concerning such
program s or product's efficacy, or the comparabilty or superiority
over other programs or products , or the results typically achieved by
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consumers of the program or product unless , at the time of making
such representation respondents possess and rely upon competent and
reliable scientific evidence that substantiates the representation;
provided, however that for purposes of this order for any test
analysis, research , study, or other evidence to be "competent and
reliable" it must be conducted and evaluated in an objective manner
by persons qualified to do so , using procedures generally accepted in
the profession to yield accurate and reliable results.

It is further ordered That respondents shall for at least five years
after the date of the last dissemination of the representation , maintain
and upon reasonable request make available to the Federal Trade
Commission for inspection and copying copies of:

1. All materials that were relied upon by respondents in disseminat-
ing any representation covered by this order.

2. All test reports, studies, surveys, or demonstrations in their

possession or control that contradict any representation of respon-

dents that is covered by this order.

IV.

It is further ordered That respondents shall conspicuously post a
copy of this order on their premises.

It is further ordered That the corporate respondent and the
individual respondents shall notify the Commission at least thirty (30)
days prior to any proposed change in the corporate respondent such as
dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation , the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or any
other change in the corporation which may affect compliance
obligations arising out of the order, or of any change in the position or
responsibilities of Dinah H. Simonini or Donald 1. Simonini in regard
to any corporation or subsidiary of which either is an offcer and
which corporation or subsidiary is, directly or indirectly, involved in
the sale or distribution of any electric muscle stimulation treatment
program or product.
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VI.

It is further ordered That respondents shall , within sixty (60) days
aftr service of this order, file with the Commission a report, in
writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which they
have complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

ADOLPH COORS COMPAN

MODIFNG ORDER IN REGARD TO ALGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 8845. Orde, Feb. 4, 1975* Modifying Orde, Aug. , 1989

This order reopens the proceeding and modifies the Commission s order issued on Feb.
, 1975 (85 FTC 187), by deleting provisions tbat probibited respondent from

imposing certain terrtorial and customer restrictions on its distributors.

ORDER GRATING IN PART AND DENYING IN PART PETITION TO

REOPEN AND MODIFY ORDER

Adolph Coors Company ("Coors ), has fied , on April 3, 1989, a

Petition to Modify Order

" ("

Petition ), pursuant to Section 5(b), of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U. C. 45(b), and Section 2.
of the Commission s Rules of Practice and Procedure , 16 CFR 2. 51.
The petition asks the Commission to reopen the proceeding and set
aside the modified cease and desist order entered by the Commission
on February 4, 1975 , in Docket No. 8845, 85 FTC 187

, "

except
insofar as the order prohibits price fixing or resale price mainte-

nance. " Petition at 2. Specifically, Coors requests that the Commis-
sion set aside in their entirety paragraphs 4(c), 5 , 6 , 7 , 8 and 11 of the
order, which prohibit Coors from, among other things, imposing non-
price vertical restraints on distributors of Coors ' beer products. ' In

support of its request, Coors argues that the order modification is
warranted by changed conditions of law. Petition at 2-3. The petition
was placed on the public record for thirty days, pursuant to Section

51(c) of the Commission s Rules , and one comment was received.
For the reasons discussed below, the Commission has determined that
Coors has not shown a changed condition of law requiring reopening
the order but that Coors has shown that granting the request, with
one exception , would be in the public interest. The Commission has
therefore reopened and modified the order.

*Decision issued July 24 , 1973 (83 FTC 32).
I In addition to prohibiting Coors frm refusing to deliver ber to distributors selling outside their designate

terrtory, parph 7 of the order also prohibits Coorn from refusing to deliver ber to distributors who sell
ber at prices, markups or profits lower than those approved by Coors. 85 Jo"'C at 189.
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The Commission s complaint, issued on June 7 , 1971 , 83 FTC 32
alleges that Coors violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act by, among other things, fixing wholesale and retail prices
imposing terrtorial and customer restrictions on its distributors, and
using unfair short-term termination provisions in its contracts with
distributors. Following extensive evidentiary hearings, the Adminis-
trative Law Judge ("AL") ordered the dismissal of the complaint
against Coors. 83 FTC at 174. On appeal from the AU' s Initial
Decision, the Commission substituted its findings for those of the AU
and issued its order on July 24 , 1973. 83 FTC at 211. The Commission
condemned Coors' terrtorial restraints as per se unlawful because

they were part of an unlawfl resale price maintenance scheme. Coors
appealed the Commission s order to the United States Court of

Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, which upheld all of the provisions of the
Commission s order, except those dealing with the notice and

arbitration requirement in the event of a distributor s termination. The
court also held that Coors ' terrtorial restraints were themselves per se

unlawful under United States v. Arnold, Schwinn Co. , et al. 388
S. 365 (1967). See Adolph Coors Company v. FTC 497 F.2d 1178

(10th Cir. 1974), cert. denied 419 U.S. 1105 (1975).
Consequently, the Commission issued its final order on February 4

1975. The order, among other things, prohibits Coors from engaging
in wholesale and retail price fixing, imposing certain non-price vertical
restrictions on its distributors, including terrtorial restraints, and

requiring exclusive draught accounts. 85 FTC 187.

II.

Coors requests that the Commission reopen the proceeding and set
aside in their entirety paragraphs 4(c), 5 , 6 , 7 , 8 and 11 of the order.
Paragraph 4(c) of the order prohibits Coors from refusing to sell beer
to any Coors distributor or terminating any Coors distributor because
the distributor sold Coors beer to another distributor or retailer
located outside of the terrtory granted to the Coors distributor. 85
FTC at 188. Paragraph 5 prohibits Coors from restricting "the
terrtory in which or the persons to whom a distributor may sell Coors
beer.

'" 

Id. at 189. Paragraph 6 prohibits Coors from allocating Coors

2 A proviso to Dara
aDh 5 states. however. that the order does not Drohibit Coon; from "f'.nmnlvinD" wit.h t.h..
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beer among its distributors "in times of beer shortage at the Coors
brewery, " by any means not equitably related to their proportionate
purchases of Coors beer during "the last three months before the
allocation. . . . Id. Paragraph 7 prohibits Coors from refusing to
deliver all of a distributor s order because the distributor made sales
outside of his assigned terrtory or because the distributor is sellng
Coors beer at "unapproved" prices or markups. Id. Paragraph 8 of the
order prohibits Coors from prohibiting its distributors from sellng
Coors beer for "central warehouse delivery."" Id. Finally, paragraph
11 generally prohibits Coors from hindering, suppressing or eliminat-
ing competition between or among distributors or retailers handling
Coors beer. Id. at 189-90.

Coors argues that these provisions of the order, especially in the
context of Coors ' unique brewing method , and experience with the
unauthorized distribution of its products in expansion markets, have
placed Coors at a competitive disadvantage and (have J been

harmful." Petition at 9. Among other things, Coors beer distributors
are required to maintain Coor s ber products in refrigerated
warehouses. Additionally, the distributors must monitor the age of
their Coors inventory and are responsible for closely monitoring
product shelf- life and ensuring that only fresh product is available to
consumers. Petition at 5. Coors believes that its abilty to restrict its
distributors ' terrtories and impose other non- price vertical restraints

is necessary because such restrictions would allow Coors to (1)
monitor better its distributors ' performance , (2) provide incentives to
distributors to invest the resources and provide servces necessary to
comply with Coors' quality control requirements, and (3) compete
better against other beer brewers.

Coors asserts that the relief it seeks is required by a change in law.
Specifically, Coors argues that the order provisions it is asking the
Commission to set aside were predicated upon the Schwinn doctrine
reuirements of any stte law. Id.

S COOl' , however, is not prohibite frm estblishing refrgeration stdars for the centra warhouse
which ar substtially similar to those estblished for distributors." 85 FTC at 189.4 Paraph 1 of the order prohibits Cors frm fixing the prices at which distributors sell Cors ber to

retalers or the prices at which retalers sell Cors ber to consumers. Parphs 2 and 3 of the order
(prohibiting Cors from Buggstng prices or mark-ups for its distributors) expire by their own terms in 1978.
Subpamgrphs 4(a), (b) and (d) prohibit Coors frm terminating any distributor beause the distributor either
sold ber or advertise at prices different frm those approved by Coors , or beause the distributor has
distrbute the prouct of another brewer. Paraph 9 prohibits Coorn frm reuiring that retalern serve
Corn draught ber as their only light-eolore draught ber. Paraph 10 prohibits Coors frm reuiring its
distributors to eliminate or refrin from obtaning and handling rival brands of ber in order to beome or
remain a Cors distrbutor. 85 FTC at 187-90. COOl' doe not sek relief frm these remaining operative order
provisions. Petition at 16.
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which the Supreme Court overrled in Continental T. v. , Inc. v. GTE-
Sylvania, Inc. 433 U.S. 36 (1977). Consequently, according to Coors
Coors ' non-price vertical restraints "were never put to . . . the 'market
power' analysis currently used in vertical , non-price restraint cases.
Petition at 12. Coors asserts that it does not have suffcient market
power' to raise its prices significantly without materially and
adversely affecting its business, and suggests that Coors ' non- price
vertical restraints would be judged under a rule of reason analysis
today.

Section 5(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U. C. 45(b), provides that the

Commission shall reopen an order to consider whether it should be
modified if the respondent "makes a satisfactory showing that
changed conditions of law or fact" require such modification. A
satisfactory showing suffcient to require reopening is made when a
request to reopen identifies significant changes in circumstances and
shows that the changes eliminate the need for the order or make
continued application of it inequitable or harmful to competition.

Louisiana-Pacfic Cor. Docket No. 2956 Letter to John C. Hart
(June 5 , 1986), at 4.

The Commission may also modify an order pursuant to Section 5(b)
when , although changed circumstances would not require reopening,
the Commission determines that the public interest requires such
action. Therefore, Section 2. 51 of the Commission s Rules of Practice
invites respondents in petitions to reopen to show how the public
interest warrants the requested modification. In the case of a request

for modification based on this latter ground, a petitioner must

demonstrate as a threshold matter some affrmative need to modify
the order. Damon Cor. Docket No. 2916 Letter to Joel E.

Hoffman, Esq. (March 29 , 1983), at 2. For example , it may be in the
public interest to modify an order "to relieve any impediment to
effective competition that may result from the order. Damon Cor.

Docket No. 2916 101 FTC 689 (1983). If the showing of need is
made , the Commission will balance the reasons favoring the requested
modification against any reasons not to make the modification.
Damon Letter at 2. The Commission wil also consider whether the

:; Coors ' national market share is less than eight percent and it no longer holds the leading position in any
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particular modification sought is appropriate to remedy the identified
harm.

The language of Section 5(b) plainly anticipates that the burden is
on the petitioner to make the requisite satisfactory showing. The
petitioner must make a "satisfactory showing" of changed conditions
to obtain reopening of the order. The legislative history also makes it
clear that the petitioner has the burden of showing, other than by
conclusory statements, why an order should be modified. If the

Commission determines that the petitioner has made the required
showing, the Commission must reopen the order to consider whether
modification is required and, if so, the nature and extent of the

modification. The Commission is not required to reopen the order
however, if the petitioner fails to meet its burden of making the
satisfactory showing required by the statute. The petitioner s burden
is not a light one given the public interest in the finality of
Commission orders. See Federated Department Stores, Inc. v. Moitie
425 U.S. 394 (1981) (strong public interest considerations support
repose and finality).

IV.

Based on the information provided by Coors, and other available

information , the Commission has determined that Coors has not made
a satisfactory showing that changes in law require reopening the
proceeding and setting aside the order provisions prohibiting Coors
from imposing upon its distributors certain non-price vertical re-
straints , including terrtorial restrictions. However, the Commission
has concluded that Coors has made a satisfactory showing that
reopening the order and setting aside the non-price vertical restraints
provisions is in the public interest.
The Commission s 1973 decision in this case, aftr finding that

Coors engaged in unlawfl resale price maintenance, called the

terrtorial restraints "an obvious adjunct to Coors' efforts to control

the prices at which its distributors and their retail accounts dispose of
the product". 83 FTC at 192. Consequently, the Commission
condemned Coors ' terrtorial restraints as per se unlawfl because

they were part of the unlawful RPM scheme, but determined that it
6 The Commilll!ion may properly decline to repen an order if a reuest is "merely conclusory or otherwise

fails to set forth speific fac demonstrating in detail the nature of the changed conditions and the reasons
why these change conditionB reuire the reueste modification of the order. " S. Rep. No. 96-500 , 96th
Cong., 1st Sess. 9-10 (1979).
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was not necessary to conclude that the restrictions in themselves were
unlawfl per se. The court of appeals held the restraints in
themselves per se unlawful, citing Schwinn albeit with substantial
criticism. 497 F.2d 1178 at 1186-87.

Sylvania which was decided shortly aftr the Commission issued
the final order in this case , recognized that exclusive territories and
other non-price vertical restraints are not inherently anticompetitive
and must thus be judged under the rule of reason. Sylvania replaced
the per se test for non-price vertical customer and terrtorial restraints
outside RPM with a rule of reason test, but the Court did not change
the per se rule for non-price vertical restraints that are part of a RPM
scheme. See Monanto Co. v. Spray-Rite Sere Cor. 465 U.S. 752
760 , n. 6 (1984). Sylvania therefore , is not a change in law as to the
order in this matter.

Although non-price vertical restraints are stil per se unlawful as
part of a RPM scheme , Coors does not request elimination of the
order s prohibitions on RPM. Therefore, any terrtorial or other non-
price vertical restrictions imposed as part of a resale price mainte-
nance scheme would be per se unlawful and would violate this order
even if modified as Coors requests. The non-price provisions of the
order, apart from the RPM provisions, are thus best viewed as
fencing-in provisions, intended to prevent the recurrence of resale
price fixing. Coors has shown that the benefits of those provisions
when viewed under the rule of reason approach in Sylvania are
outweighed by the costs they impose, and may now be set aside in the
public interest.

Coors has made a threshold showing that the order provisions it
requests be set aside impede and deter Coors (in states that do not
permit or require terrtorial restrictions) from correcting impaired
distribution problems and from adopting effciency-maximizing distri-
bution arrangements that would intensify interbrand competition. 9
7 The Commission noted that "

(a)s the court in Schwinn reognize , whatever the status of vertical
restrictions unaccompanied by price-fiing, the presence of price-fiing as par and parl of a system of
terrtorial restrictions rendcl' the entire packag ilega per se." fd. at 194.

See Belto Eletronic C0ratio 100 FTC 68 (1982).
9 For example, any steps Coors might tae increas distribuwr emphasis on providing a consistntly

fresh, quality prouct to the consuming public or to improve gegrphic market covera may subject Cors to
the risk of being accuse of violating the order and , conseuently. the risk of a civil penalty suit and judgment.
By not being able to corrt these distribution problems effectively, Coors is injure in its competition with
other brewcrn. In fact , this order may injure Coors more than it would other brewers beause of Coors ' unique

(4'

.j'..\



---- ~~~

A''' n..""H.

"'''

.v.

191 Modifying Order

These arrangements are available to Coors ' competitors, and these
order provisions therefore injure Coors ' ability to compete effectively
with other breweries.

Setting aside the non-price vertical restraints provisions of the order
would enable Coors to employ distribution methods that likely would
be reasonable under the rule of reason standard , because Coors lacks
the necessary market power to raise its prices to supracompetitive
levels. It would also allow Coors to take advantage of certain
effciencies in the distribution of its products , which, in turn, would
promote interbrand competition. Sylvania, supra at 54-55.

Allowing Coors to use what it considers the most efficient and cost
effective distribution of its products , including agreeing with distribu-
tors in certain states to dedicate their sales efforts to designated

geographic areas, would put Coors on an equal footing with other
brewers and should make Coors and its distributors more effective
competitors. This is consistent with the recognition that in competitive
markets consensual non-price vertical arrangements can benefit both
competition and the consumer. Coors ' inability to impose non- price

vertical restraints that its competitors are using places Coors at a
competitive disadvantage. Because of the competitive nature of the
beer industry, the costs of the prohibitions on non-price vertical
restraints outweigh the continued need for these provisions. That
balancing therefore supports modifyng the order in the public
interest.

VI.

With respect to Coors' request that the Commission set aside

paragraph 11 of the order, the Commission has concluded that that
paragraph' s general prohibition against Coors " (hJindering, suppress-
ing or eliminating competition. . . between or among distributors

. . .

" 85 FTC at 189-90, is overly restrictive and broad. This language
may have a chil1ng effect on Coors' abilty to take advantage of
certain effciencies in the distribution of its products. Moreover, in

view of the current legal framework for analyzing vertical restraints
and the retention of the order s resale price maintenance prohibitions,
paragraph 11 is no longer necessary to fence-in Coors' conduct
concerning non-price vertical restraints it may impose upon its
distributors.
brewing and distribution methods. See Bureau of Economics, Federal Trade Commission Th Brew7I

Industry at 111 13 (1978).
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Finally, the Commission has also concluded that Coors has not made
a satisfactory showing that changed conditions of fact or law or the
public interest require that the Commission set aside the part 

paragraph 7 of the order that concerns conduct involving resale price

maintenance. Setting aside this part of paragraph 7 would be

inconsistent with Coors ' request that the Commission set aside "the
order. . . except insofar as that order prohibits price fixing or resale

price maintenance." Petition at 3. Additionally, retention of the
resale price maintenance part of paragraph 7 is consistent with the
primary objective of the order.

VII.

Accordingly, it is ordered that this matter be reopened and that the
Commission s order in Docket No. 8845 , issued on February 4 , 1975

, and it hereby is, modified, as of the date of servce of this order, by

setting aside paragraphs 4(c), 5 , 6, 8, and 11 , and by modifyng
paragraph 7 to read:

7. Refusing to deliver all of a distributor s order because the

distributor or the distributor s customer is sellng Coors beer at prices
markups or profits lower than those approved by respondent.

Commissioner Strenio not participating.

I( Coors has not asked to be relieved from Subparagrphs 4(a) and (b), which prohibit Coors frm
tl'mlinatimr a distributor beause that distributor or its customers resel! at other than approved prices.
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IN THE MATTER OF

PROMODES , SA , ET AL.

Docket 9228. Int.locuWr Orde, Augt 10, 1989

ORDER

By motion dated August 4, 1989, the parties have jointly moved
that respondent The Kroger Company ("Kroger ) be dismissed from
this action. In connection therewith, Kroger, along with Promodes

A. and Red Food Stores, Inc. (collectively "Red Food"), and
complaint counsel agree to the following provisions regarding discov-
ery in this mattr:

1. Kroger wil respond in a timely manner to reasonable discovery

requests, including document requests and interrogatories; and
2. Kroger documents, Kroger interrogatory responses and the

sworn testimony of Kroger offcials wil be admissible to the same
extent as if Kroger were a party. Complaint counsel and Red Food will
not object to the introduction of Kroger documents , Kroger interroga-
tory responses or the sworn testimony of Kroger offcials on the
grounds that Kroger is no longer a party to this litigation.

The motion to dismiss is granted.
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IN THE MATIER OF

NEW ENGLAD MOTOR RATE BUREAU, INC.

flNAL ORDER, OPINION, ETC. , IN REGARD TO ALGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERA TRADE COMMiSSION ACT

Docket 9170. Complaint, Oct. 24, 1983-Final Orrk, Aug. , 1989

This final order reuires, among other things, the respondent to halt its collective
ratemaking activities in certin states and to cancel , within six months, all tarffs
it has filed in those states.

Appearancs

For the Commission: Michael E. Antalics, Robert J.
Harold F. Moody and John H. Seesel.

For the respondent: Bryce Rea, Jr. , Rea, Cross Auchimcloss
Washington, D. C. and Curtis Wood, New England Motor Rate

Bureau, Inc. Burlingtn, Ma.

Schroeder

COMPLANT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission , having reason to believe that The New England
Motor Rate Bureau, Inc., a corporation, hereinaftr sometimes

referred to as "respondent " has violated the provisions of said Act

and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges as follows:

For purposes of this complaint the term carr" means a common
carrer of property by motor vehicle.

Intrastate transportation means the pickup or receipt, transpor-
tation and delivery, wholly within any state of the United States, of
property for compensation by a carrer authorized by that state to

engage therein.
Member means any carrer or other person which pays dues or

belongs to The New England Motor Rate Bureau, Inc. , or to any

successor corporation.
Tariff' means the publication stating the rates of a carrer for the
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intrastate transportation of property, excluding general rules and
regulations.

Rate" means a charge , payment or fixed price according to a ratio
scale or standard for direct or indirect transportation servce.

Collective rate" means any rate or charge established under any
contract, agreement, understanding, plan , program, combination or
conspiracy between two or more competing carrers, or between any
carrer and respondent.

PARGRAPH 1. Respondent, The New England Motor Rate Bureau
Inc. , is a corporation organized , existing and doing business under and
by virtue of the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with its
offce and principal place of business located at 14 New England
Executive Park, Burlingtn, Massachusetts. Respondent publishes
and issues tariffs and supplements thereto containing intrastate rates
for the transportation of property on behalf of member carrers.

PAR. 2. Common carrers by motor vehicle engaged in intrastate
transportation of property within each of the states of Massachusetts
New Hampshire , Rhode Island and Vermont do so under certificates
of public convenience and necessity granted by state regulatory
agencies in the respective states. Such motor carrers are subject to
rate regulation by a state agency and are required to charge just and
reasonable rates. Motor common carrers in these states are not
permittd to change the rates filed once they have been accepted by
the state regulatory agencies in the respective states.

PAR. 3. The statutes which provide for regulation of common
carriers engaged in the transportation of property within the states of
Massachusetts , New Hampshire, Rhode Island and Vermont do not
command, authorize or otherwse provide for the establishment
operation or regulation of rate agreements containing collective rates
among such common carrers or motor carrer rate-making bureaus.

PAR. 4. Except to the extent that competition has been restrained as

herein alleged , respondent's members have been and are now in
competition among themselves and with other common carrers.

PAR. 5. Respondent' s membership consists of approximately 900
common carrers of property by motor vehicle. Respondent' s members
are entitled to and do , among other things, vote for and elect the
offcers and directors of respondent. The control, direction and
management of respondent is vested in the members of the Board of
Directors, who employ a general manager who acts as chief
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administrative offcer of the corporation with direct charge of and
supervsion over the affairs of respondent.

PAR. 6. The acts and practices of respondent set forth in paragraph
eight have been and are now in or affecting commerce as "commerce
is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and
respondent is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Trade
Commission. Among other things, the aforesaid acts and practices:

(A) Affect the flow of substantial sums of money from businesses
and other private parties to respondent's members for rendering
intrastate transportation servces , which money flows across state
lines;

(B) Affect the purchase and use of equipment and other goods and
servces by respondent's members which are shipped in interstate
commerce; and

(C) Are supportd by the receipt of dues and fees for services from
out-of-state members and others.

PAR. 7. Shippers use intrastate transportation servces of carrers

within the states of Massachusetts , New Hampshire, Rhode Island
and Vermont to move general commodities from warehouses and
distribution centers to customers located in the same state as the
warehouse or distribution center. These general commodities are
transportd from out-of-state origin points to such warehouses and
distribution centers for distribution within these states. For intrastate
deliveries of general commodities from warehouses and distribution
centers, carrers charge shippers or shippers ' customers the intrastate
rates published by respondent. These intrastate shipping charges are
factors which influence the prices of such general commodities. The
intrastate delivery servces of these carrers are an essential and
integral part of the interstate business transactions of such shippers.

Thus, the activities of these carriers have a substantial and direct
effect upon interstate commerce.

PAR. 8. For many years and continuing up to and including the date
of the issuance of this complaint, respondent, its members , offcers
and directors and others have agreed to engage , and have engaged, in
a combination and conspiracy, agreement, concerted action or unfair
and unlawful acts, policies and practices, the purpose or effect of
which is , was, or may be to unlawflly hinder, restrain, restrict
suppress or eliminate competition among carrers engaged in the
intrastate transportation of property within the states of Massachu-
setts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island and Vermont.
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Pursuant to and in furtherance of said agreement and concert of
action, respondent, its members and others have engaged and
continue to engage in the following acts , policies and practices, among
others:

(A) Initiating, preparing, developing, disseminating, and taking
other actions to establish and maintain collective rates, which have the
purpose or effect of fixing, establishing, stabilizing or otherwise
tampering with rates charged for the intrastate transportation of
property within the states of Massachusetts , New Hampshire , Rhode
Island and Vermont;

(B) Participating in and continuing to participate in the collective
rates; and

(C) Filing collective rates with the state regulatory agencies in
Massachusetts, New Hampshire , Rhode Island and Vermont.

PAR. 9. The acts and practices of respondent, its members and
others as alleged in paragraph eight have been and are now having
the effects, among others, of:

(A) Raising, fixing, stabilizing, pegging, maintaining, or otherwse
interfering or tampering with the rates charged by carrers for the
intrastate transportation of property within the states of Massachu-
setts , New Hampshire, Rhode Island and Vermont;

(B) Restricting, restraining, hindering, preventing or frustrating
rate competition among carrers in the intrastate transportation of
property within the states of Massachusetts , New Hampshire, Rhode
Island and Vermont;

(C) Depriving shippers patronizing carriers for intrastate transpor-
tation of property within the states of Massachusetts , New Hamp-
shire , Rhode Island and Vermont of the benefits of free and open
competition in the provision of said servces; and

(D) Depriving consumers in the states of Massachusetts, New
Hampshire , Rhode Island and Vermont of the benefits of free and
open competition in the intrastate transportation of property within
said states.

PAR. 10. The acts , policies and practices of respondent, its members
and others , as herein alleged , were and are to the prejudice and injury
of the public and constituted and constitute unfair methods of
competition in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act , as amended. The acts and practices
as herein alleged , are continuing and wil continue in the absence of
the relief herein requested.
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INIIA DECISION BY

ERNEST G. BARNES , ADMINISTRATIV LAw JUDGE

DECEMBER 12, 1986

PREUMINARY STATEMENT

The complaint herein issued on October 24, 1983. It charges (3)

respondent, its members, offcers and directors, and others with a
continuing combination and conspiracy to fix rates charged for the
intrastate transportation of property within the states of Massachu-
setts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island and Vermont. The complaint
alleges that respondent's membership consists of approximately 900
common carrers of property by motor vehicle, and that respondent, its
members and others , have taken action to establish and maintain
collective rates, which have the purpose of fixing, stabilizing or
otherwse tampering with rates charged for the intrastate transporta-
tion of property within the states of Massachusetts, New Hampshire
Rhode Island and Vermont, and that these collective rates have been
filed with the state regulatory agencies in such states. This action is
alleged to have deprived shippers and consumers of the benefits of

I The delay in concluding this 
mattr hag ocurr for severa reasns. A prehearng conference was held on

Januar 16, 1984 , at which time the pares contemplate prepartion and submission of a stipulation of fac.
On Marh 23 , 1984 , the paries filed a stipulation of fac, and reserved the right to present further evidence
into the reord. Subponas duc tem were issued at the reuest of complaint counsel to severa of

respondent' s carer members. By order date May 25 , 1984 , the undersigned denied a motion to quash these
subponas. The member caers thereafr refuBe to comply with the subponas and by order of August 23
1984 court enforcment of the subponas was dire by the Commission.

Enforcement of the subpona was ordere by the court on Deember 5 , 1984. FT v. Th New England
Moto Rate Bureu, 11U. , et al. Misc. No. 84-0268 (D. C. 1984) Subseuent to the court's order, on Januar

, 1985, respondent and complaint coul1l entere into a stpulation concerning the mattrs covere by the
subponas.

Complaint counsl , on April 29 , 1985, filed a motion for paral summar decision pursuant to Secion 3.
of the Commssion s Rules of Prce. Respondent's answer to this motion was made in the fonn of a cross-
motion for sunar decision (see Cross Motion For Summar Deision , July 1 , 1985), and complaint counsel'
response to repondent' s cross-motion was filed July 19, 1985.

RulingB on complaint counsel' s motion for parial summar decision, and respondent's cross-motion for
summar decision, were made on Marh 7, 1986. The delay in ruling on counsls ' motions was ocioned by
awaiting the Firs Circuit Court of Appeal's decision in Massachusetts Furniture Pirw Mooer Ass n Inc.

v. FT, 773 F.2d 391 (1986), reh. deie November 21, 1985 , and the Commission s decision in the matter
afr the Firs Circuit's remand of the proeeing to the Commission. The Commssion dismiBS the Mass.
Mavs cas by order dat Marh 19, 1986.

A preheanng conference was held April 29, 1986, and an order was issued to prepar for a tral to

commence no later than mid-July 1986. On July 8, 1986 counsel advise the administtive law judge that a
facual stipulation would be submitt which would expeite the compJetion of this mattr. Such a stipulation
was filed on August 28, 1986, and the rerd for reption of evidence was close on September 26 , 1986.
Briefing of this mattr followed and, afr one extension of time for briefing purpses , was concluded on
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free and open competition in the intrastate transportation of property
within those states. Such acts , policies and practices are alleged to be
to the prejudice and injury of the public and constitute unfair methods
of competition in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act.

Respondent' s answer, dated November 30, 1983, denied the
charging allegations of the complaint, and sets forth thirteen defenses
to the complaint. These defenses include contentions that the
complaint fails to state a claim on which relief can be granted; that
respondent' s members are subject to the Interstate Commerce Act, 49

C. 10101 et seq., and exempt from regulation by the Federal
Trade Commission; that respondent' s member carriers are the real
parties in interest and are indispensable parties to this proceeding;

that regulation of the activities challenged in the complaint is within
the exclusive jurisdiction of the several states; that the challenged
activities are subject to a special regulatory scheme and because of the
clear repugnancy between that regulatory scheme and the Federal
Trade Commission Act, the latter is impliedly repealed; that the

activities alleged in the complaint are exempt from the Federal Trade
Commission Act under the doctrines of Parker v. Brown and Noer-
Pennington; that the activities alleged in the complaint are exempt
from the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act by virtue of
Section 10706(b) of the Interstate Commerce Act, 49 V.
10706(b); that because of pervasive state regulation it would be unfair
to hold respondent responsible for conduct implementing state
regulation; that all matters raised by the complaint are within the
primary jurisdiction of federal or state transportation regulatory

agencies charged with the exclusive right and duty to regulate such
matters and the Federal Trade Commission has failed to exhaust
these administrative remedies; and that this proceeding is barred by
doctrines of laches, estoppel and/or waiver.

On March 23 , 1984 counsel for the parties fied a stipulation of facts
and reserved the right to present further evidence into (4) the record.

Complaint counsel then sought subpoenas duces tecum to be issued to

respondent's carrer members. Subpoenas were issued but the
member carriers refused to comply. Court enforcement was sought
and compliance was ordered by the Vnited States District Court for
the District of Columbia. FTC v. The New England Motor Rate
Bureau, Inc. , et al. Misc. No. 84-0268 (December 5, 1984)
Thereaftr, on January 14 , 1985 , the parties fied a stipulation which
covered the matters sought by the subpoenas.
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Complaint counsel, on April 29, 1985, fied a motion for partial
summary decision pursuant to Section 3. 24 of the Commission s Rules

of Practice. Respondent's answer to this motion was in the form of a
cross-motion for summary decision. (See Cross Motion For Summary
Decision, dated July 1 , 1985) Rulings were entered on March 7 1986

granting in part complaint counsel's motion and denying respondent'
motion. Since the rulings of March 7 , 1986 , granting in part complaint
counsel' s motion and denying respondent's motion , contained substan-

tial findings of fact and conclusions and disposed of all of the issues in
this proceeding except for respondent's Parker v. Brown (317 V.

341 (1942)) state action defense , the findings of fact, conclusions , and
orders contained therein are made a part of this Initial Decision and
are attached hereto as Attachments I and II.

Having reviewed the entire record of this proceeding, 2 and (5) the

proposed findings of fact and legal memoranda submitted by the
parties , including the memorandum filed by the National Association
of Regulatory Utility Commissioners ' the following findings of fact

and conclusions are made and an appropriate order is entered.

FINDINGS OF FACT

NEW ENGLAD MOTOR RATE BUREAU, INC.

1. The New England Motor Rate Bureau, Inc. (NEMRB) is
regulated by the Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC). See 40

C. 10706(b); Motor Carrer Rate Bureaus-Implementation of
L. 96-296, 364 I.C. C. 464 , 921 (1980). (Stip. August 28 , 1986

The ICC's Boston Regional Offce is sent notice of NEMRB's Annual

Board of Directors , General Rate Committee and Docket meetings
and an ICC agent from that office has attended those meetings on a

2 The reord of this proeeing consists of the following:

(1) Stipulation, date March 23 , 1984

(2) Complaint Counsel's First Reuest fOf Admissions, dated April 24, 1984'"

(3) Respondent's Answer To Complaint Counsel's First Reuest For Admissions, dated April 30, 1984.

(4) Stipulation, date January 14 , 1985

(5) Complaint Counsel's Second Reuest For Admissions , dated March 6, 1985"

(6) Respondent's Answer To Complaint Counsel's Second Reuest For Admissions, dated March 15
1985*

(7) Order Granting In Par Complaint Counsel's Motion For Parial Summary Decision , dated March 7

1986 (Atthment I here)

(8) Order Denying Respondent's Cross-Motion For Summary Decision dated March 7 , 1986 (Atth-
ment II hereto)

(9) Stipulation, dated August 28, 1986

. See Appendix to Complaint Counsel's Motion For Partial Summary Decision, dated April 29, 1985.

See Order Granting Motion Of The National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners For Leave To
Intervene For Limited Purpse Of Filing Memorandum, date December 10, 1986.
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spot check basis. Notices of these meetings are also sent to the States
of New Hampshire and Rhode Island and the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. (Stip. August 28, 1986 3) The ICC last did a
complete audit of NEMRB in late 1983 and early 1984. At that time a
three-person investigating team from the ICC examined the records of
NEMRB in depth and questioned its personnel at length regarding the
operations of the Bureau. (Stip. August 28, 1986

2. Effective July 1 , 1986 , motor common carriers of freight (except
parcel express carrers) are no longer required to file tariffs with the
State of Vermont. Accordingly, NEMRB no longer formulates rates
applicable to intrastate transportation of property in Vermont, nor
does it file tariffs or supplements published by it with any agent in
Vermont. (Stip. August 28, 1986 4) (6)

STATE OF NEW HAPSHIRE

3. Exhibit A attached to Stipulation dated August 28 , 1986 is a true
copy of New Hampshire s motor carrer statute. N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann.
S 21-L; S 375-A&B et seq. (Stip. August 28 , 1986 5) Exhibit B
attached to Stipulation dated August 28 , 1986 is a true copy of New
Hampshire s rules and regulations governing motor carrers of
property. N. H. Admin. Code Puc 800 et seq. 900 et seq. (Stip. August

, 1986

4. The New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
was created by statute in 1985 and it assumed responsibility for
regulating intrastate transportation from the New Hampshire Public
Utilities Commission , which formerly held such responsibilities. (Stip.
August 28, 1986 6) A Commissioner heads NHDOT and is
responsible for regulating motor common carrers. N.H. Rev. Stat.
Ann. S 21-L:2; S 375-A:14 , S 375-B:17(I). The Commissioner may
adopt rules regulating the form of tariff schedules and the manner of
their filing. (Stip. August 28, 1986

5. The Bureau of Common Carrers (BCC) is a branch of NHDOT'
Division of Public Works. BCC is primarily responsible for regulating
intrastate motor carrers that transport property for hire. The
Administrator of BCC reports to the Director of Public Works and
Transportation , who is nominated by the Commissioner and appointed
by the Governor. N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. S 21-L:3 (II). (Stip. August 28
1986

6. A motor carrer of property for hire must obtain from NHDOT a
certificate, if a common carrer, or a permit, if a contract carrier




